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Restaurant workers net $844K restitution in  
19 surcharge enforcement settlements so far 

	
Herrera praises good faith efforts by restaurants ‘to do right by their employees’; 

announces ‘clean bills of health’ for 12 other establishments targeted in investigation 
	
	
SAN	FRANCISCO	(May	8,	2014)—City	Attorney	Dennis	Herrera	today	announced	settlement	
agreements	with	18	local	restaurant	businesses	that	voluntarily	took	part	in	his	office’s	surcharge	
enforcement	and	amnesty	program,	which	seeks	to	remedy	shortfalls	between	amounts	collected	
from	customers	to	cover	the	cost	of	complying	with	San	Francisco’s	universal	healthcare	law,	and	
funds	actually	expended	to	provide	health	care	benefits	to	employees.		Together	with	an	earlier	
settlement	announced	in	January,	Herrera’s	restaurant	surcharge	enforcement	effort	has	now	
netted	a	total	$844,644	to	be	distributed	among	approximately	1,500	eligible	employees	by	19	
different	companies.		
	
The	program	announced	in	January	included	a	one‐time	50	percent	amnesty	offer	for	
establishments	with	significant	shortfalls—provided	they	fully	cooperate	with	city	investigators;	
agree	to	good	faith	compliance	with	the	employer	spending	requirement	of	San	Francisco’s	Health	
Care	Security	Ordinance	moving	forward;	and	directly	compensate	their	current	and	former	
employees	who	were	the	intended	beneficiaries	of	the	surcharges	paid	by	customers.		All	
agreements	announced	today	resolve	potential	disputes	with	the	City	over	collected	surcharges	
without	admissions	of	liability.			
	
“I	commend	these	businesses	for	working	cooperatively	with	us	so	early	in	the	process,	and	for	
understanding	our	duty	to	enforce	the	law	even‐handedly,”	said	Herrera.		“Today’s	settlements	
reflect	good	faith	efforts	by	restaurant	owners	and	managers	to	do	right	by	their	employees,	and	to	
honor	the	intent	of	fees	charged	to	their	customers.		I	recognize	that	complying	with	
groundbreaking	programs	like	Healthy	San	Francisco	can	sometimes	present	new	and	unique	
challenges.		So,	I’m	grateful	to	these	businesses	for	their	cooperation	in	reaching	settlement	
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agreements	with	us.		I’m	glad	to	continue	patronizing	these	establishments,	and	I	hope	other	San	
Franciscans	and	visitors	will	join	me	in	doing	so,	too.”		
	
Some	of	the	19	establishments	that	reached	settlements	under	the	program	include:	5A5	Steak	
Lounge,	Amber	India,	B	Star,	Bix,	Bugermeister,	Burma	Superstar,	Cafe	Bellini,	Cafe	Flore,	
MarketBar,	Mina	Group,	Nob	Hill	Cafe,	Patxi's	Chicago	Pizza	(announced	in	January),	Press	Club,	
Skool,	and	Tony’s	Pizza	Napoletana.		
	
Twelve establishments receive ‘Clean Bills of Health’ following investigation 
Herrera	also	announced	that	12	businesses	targeted	for	investigation	on	the	basis	of	the	health	care	
expenditure	shortfalls	they	reported	to	San	Francisco’s	Office	of	Labor	Standards	Enforcement	had	
received	“clean	bills	of	health.”		Recipients	of	such	letters	were	informed	by	Herrera’s	office	that	
after	extensive	review	of	additional	evidence	provided	in	the	course	of	the	City	Attorney’s	
investigation,	surcharge‐related	consumer	fraud	did	not	appear	to	have	been	committed	during	the	
relevant	time	periods.		In	most	instances,	shortfalls	reported	to	OLSE	by	businesses	that	received	
“clean	bills	of	health”	were	attributable	to	their	inadvertent	reporting	or	accounting	errors.		
	
Establishments	so	far	issued	“clean	bills	of	health”	are:	Bluestem	Brasserie,	Cafe	Claude,	Cupola	
Pizzeria,	Firefly	Restaurant,	Gitane	Restaurant	and	Bar,	Lark	Creek	Management	LLC,	Lark	Creek	
Steak,	NOPA,	One	Market	Restaurant,	Plant	Cafe,	Ristobar,	and	Twenty	Five	Lusk.	
	
Surcharge Fraud Enforcement Program background 
Herrera	announced	the	program	at	a	City	Hall	news	conference	on	Jan.	25	with	Assemblymember	
Tom	Ammiano,	Supervisors	David	Campos	and	David	Chiu,	and	representatives	from	San	Francisco	
restaurants	and	the	Office	of	Labor	Standards	Enforcement.		Ammiano	first	authored	legislation	in	
2005	as	a	member	of	the	Board	of	Supervisors	that	would	ultimately	lead	to	the	City’s	Health	Care	
Security	Ordinance,	or	HCSO,	which	passed	in	2007	with	policy	input	from	then‐Mayor	Gavin	
Newsom.		Board	President	Chiu	and	Supervisor	Campos	have	both	been	active	in	subsequent	
proposed	amendments	to	strengthen	and	improve	the	law.		In	launching	the	enforcement	and	
amnesty	program,	Herrera	lauded	the	Golden	Gate	Restaurant	Association	for	working	productively	
to	share	its	helpful	input,	even	after	years	of	legal	disputes	over	the	law	that	ultimately	ended	in	the	
U.S.	Supreme	Court.			
	
Status of enforcement efforts and investigation 
In	addition	to	the	establishments	involved	with	today’s	announcement,	more	than	30	other	
businesses	applied	for	Herrera's	amnesty	program	before	the	April	10,	2013	deadline.		The	City	
Attorney’s	Office	expects	a	significant	number	of	additional	settlement	agreements	in	the	coming	
weeks,	pending	further	analysis	of	surcharge	funds	that	establishments	collected	and	expended	
over	the	relevant	time	period.					
	
Herrera’s	one‐time	offer	of	50	percent	amnesty	has	now	expired,	and	the	favorable	settlement	
terms	are	no	longer	guaranteed	to	non‐participating	establishments	with	significant	shortfalls	
between	health	care‐related	collections	and	expenditures.		Announcing	his	enforcement	and	
amnesty	program	in	January,	Herrera	said	that	restaurants	and	other	businesses	found	to	have	
committed	HCSO‐related	surcharge	fraud	during	the	years	2009	to	2011	that	failed	to	come	
forward	before	the	deadline	voluntarily	would	risk	being	sued	for	full	restitution	of	the	amount	of	
surcharges	collected	during	that	period,	together	with	potentially	substantial	penalties,	costs	and	
attorneys’	fees.		A	small	number	of	defiant,	non‐participating	businesses	remain	under	
consideration	by	the	City	Attorney	for	further	enforcement	action	or	litigation.	
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“For	restaurants	that	haven’t	yet	come	forward,	it’s	still	very	much	in	their	interest	to	do	so	
voluntarily,”	Herrera	said.		“I	can’t	guarantee	the	same	favorable	terms	reflected	in	today’s	
settlements,	but	cooperative	engagement	is	better	and	more	cost‐effective	than	lawsuits.”			
	

	
#	#	#	
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	 May	8,	2013	
	
	
«Company_Name»	
«MailAddr1»	
«MailAddr2»	
«MailCity»,	«MailSt»	«MailZip»	
	
	

Re:	Settlement	agreement	from	restaurant	surcharge	enforcement	investigation	
	
	
Dear	«Company_Name»:	
	
I	write	to	commend	you	for	voluntarily	taking	part	in	my	office’s	Surcharge	Enforcement	and	
Amnesty	Program,	which	is	working	to	remedy	shortfalls	between:	(a)	amounts	collected	from	
customers	to	cover	the	cost	of	complying	with	San	Francisco’s	universal	healthcare	law;	and	(b)	
funds	actually	expended	to	provide	health	care	benefits	to	employees.	
	
Please	find	attached	the	“Settlement	Agreement	and	Release”	I	have	approved,	which	fully	resolves	
«Company_Name»,	without	any	admission	of	liability,	from	disputes	and	claims	by	the	City	and	
County	of	San	Francisco	arising	from	my	office’s	investigation	into	your	imposition	and	expenditure	
of	health	care	surcharges	during	the	years	2009–2011.			
	
Please	know	I	appreciate	your	cooperative	approach	to	my	office’s	investigation,	and	I’m	grateful	
we	were	able	to	resolve	the	issues	we	identified	amicably.		I	look	forward	to	recommending	and	
patronizing	your	business	in	the	future,	and	I	hope	other	San	Franciscans	and	visitors	will	join	me	
in	doing	so.			
	
Should	you	have	further	questions,	please	contact	Deputy	City	Attorney	Sara	Eisenberg	at	(415)	
554‐3857.	
	
	

Sincerely,	
	
	
	
DENNIS	J.	HERRERA	
	
	

Enclosures	
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	 May	8,	2013	
	
	
«Company_Name»	
«MailAddr1»	
«MailAddr2»	
«MailCity»,	«MailSt»	«MailZip»	
	
	

Re:	“Clean	Bill	of	Health”	from	restaurant	surcharge	enforcement	investigation	
	
	
Dear	«Company_Name»:	
	
I	write	to	express	my	gratitude	to	you	for	voluntarily	taking	part	in	my	office’s	Surcharge	
Enforcement	and	Amnesty	Program,	which	is	working	to	remedy	apparent	shortfalls	between:	(a)	
amounts	collected	from	customers	to	cover	the	cost	of	complying	with	San	Francisco’s	universal	
healthcare	law;	and	(b)	funds	actually	expended	to	provide	health	care	benefits	to	employees.	
	
Based	on	my	office’s	review	of	the	information	you	provided,	it	appears	that	«Company_Name»	did	
not	commit	surcharge‐related	consumer	fraud	during	the	years	2009–2011.		Accordingly,	your	
business	has	now	been	removed	from	our	list	of	investigation	targets,	and	my	office	intends	to	
pursue	no	enforcement	action	with	respect	to	your	imposition	or	expenditure	of	health	care	
surcharges	during	those	years.		No	further	action	on	your	part	is	required	at	this	time.			
	
Please	know	I	appreciate	your	good	corporate	citizenship,	as	reflected	in	your	cooperative	
approach	to	my	office’s	investigation.		I	look	forward	to	recommending	and	patronizing	your	
business	in	the	future,	and	I	hope	other	San	Franciscans	and	visitors	will	join	me	in	doing	so.			
	
Should	you	have	further	questions,	please	contact	Deputy	City	Attorney	Sara	Eisenberg	at	(415)	
554‐3857.	
	
	

Sincerely,	
	
	
	
DENNIS	J.	HERRERA	
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